
 

                                                           
    

 
 
 

Licensing/Gambling Hearing 
 
 

To: Councillors Galvin, Hook and Wann 
 

Date: Monday, 16 May 2022 
 

Time: 10.00 am 
 

Venue: Remote Meeting 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
1. Chair   
 
To elect a Member to act as Chair of the meeting. 
 
2. Introductions   
 
3. Declarations of Interest   
 
At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might 
have in respect of business on this agenda, if they have not already 
done so in advance on the Register of Interests. 
 
4. Exclusion of Press and Public   
 
To consider excluding the Press and Public during the sub-committee’s 
deliberations and decision-making at the end of the hearing, on the 
grounds that the public interest in excluding the public outweighs the 
public interest in that part of the meeting taking place in public, under 
Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 
 
5. Minutes   
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the Licensing Hearing held on 11 
April 2022. 



 

 
6. The Determination of an Application by Hilt Adventures Ltd. 

for a Section 35(3) (a) Variation of a Premises Licence for 
The Hilt, 57 Goodramgate, York YO1 7LS (CYC-066940)   

 
 
 
 
Democratic Services officer: 
Name: Fiona Young  
Contact Details: 

 Telephone – (01904) 552030 

 Email  - fiona.young@york.gov.uk 
 
 
For more information about any of the following, please contact the 
Democratic Services officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats. 
 
Contact details are set out above. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

mailto:fiona.young@york.gov.uk


LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB – COMMITTEES 
PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE LICENSING HEARINGS 

 
Introduction 

1. During the coronavirus pandemic emergency period it will be 
necessary for licensing hearings to be dealt with remotely.  This 
procedure sets out how City of York Council will deal with such 
hearings.  This procedure must be considered in conjunction with the 
Council’s Delivery of Remote Meetings document which sets out how 
all meetings, including licensing hearings will be held in York. 

 

2. The procedure adopted at a licensing hearing is at the discretion of 
the Sub-Committee but will normally follow the pattern outlined 
below. 

 
3. The Council's hearings procedure is based on regulations made by 

the Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003. The procedure 
is intended as a general framework to ensure natural justice and a 
fair hearing. The Sub-Committee has a duty to view all evidence 
presented before them impartially. The Sub-Committee is not bound 
by the formal rules of evidence. Nevertheless, Members must carry 
out their duty placing what weight they feel is appropriate given the 
nature of the evidence and the manner in which it was obtained, and 
communicated. 

 
4. The Council will provide a record of the hearing in a permanent and 

intelligible form and keep it for 6 years from the date of determination 
or disposal of any Appeal.  The Hearing will be recorded and the 
recording placed on the Council’s website. 

 

Preparation for the Remote Licensing Hearing 
 

5. The Sub-Committee will use the video-conferencing platform when 
the hearing is in public session.  Clear instructions will be provided to 
participants on how to join the remote hearing.  The Sub-Committee 
may exclude the public from all or part of a hearing if it considers it is 
in the public interest to do so. Should any part of the hearing need to 
be held in private session, a separate private online meeting will be 
convened by the Sub-Committee.  This video-conferencing platform 
will also be used for decision making in private. All paperwork 
relevant to the hearing will be published online on the Council’s 

Page 1 Agenda Annex



website, 5 working days before the remote hearing.  The documents 
will be produced in PDF format and will be paginated to permit ease 
of reference during the remote hearing.  Name and address details 
of those making representations will be made public. Telephone 
numbers, email addresses and signatures will be omitted.  

 

6. 5 working days before the remote hearing is due to take place, the 
Council will contact the parties with a list of issues they would like 
any party to specifically address them on or clarify at the hearing.  

 
7. If in light of the Council’s list of issues any party wishes to produce 

any further documentary evidence they should submit this to the 
Council by email three working days before the hearing.  

 
8. Any documentary evidence that is not submitted to the Council by 

email three working days before the hearing will not be admitted 
without the agreement of all parties. If it is essential to a party’s case 
that the material be admitted, then the Sub-Committee will consider 
adjourning the remote hearing to allow all parties a fair opportunity to 
consider it.  

 
9. Should any party wish to rely on any points of law, specific 

references in the s.182 Guidance, specific references in the 
Council’s Policy or any other external resources, these should be set 
down in an electronic document and submitted to the Council by 
email three working days before the hearing.  

 

The Remote Licensing Hearing 
 

10. The Applicant is permitted to speak at the remote hearing (see 
below). Ward Councillors, responsible Authorities and Representors 
are only permitted to speak if they have made written submissions 
during the consultation period.   Any party to a hearing may be 
assisted or represented by any person, legally or otherwise.  

 

11. All parties will be given a fair hearing and each party will have the 
same amount of time in which to address the Sub-Committee and 
question each other. Each party will have 15 minutes to address the 
Sub-Committee and call any witnesses and 5 minutes for questions. 

 

Page 2



12. However, where there are groups of individuals with a common 
interest, for example local residents making similar representations 
either for or against an application, consideration should be given to 
nominating a spokesperson.  Otherwise the Sub-Committee may 
impose a time limit for such representations where there is pressure 
on the Sub-Committee to hear numerous applications in a short 
period of time or for any other valid reason. 

 
13. If any Representors fail to attend the hearing, the Sub-Committee will 

normally proceed but will consider their written representation. In 
considering written evidence in the absence of a Representor, 
appropriate weight will be attached, given that the person cannot be 
questioned by Members.  

 
14. The Sub-Committee is required to disregard any information 

given or evidence produced by a party or witness which is not 
relevant to the application, representations, or notice, and the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. Duplication should be 
avoided. Comments must be confined to those points already made, 
although the parties may expand on their written submissions. The 
Sub-Committee will have read and familiarised themselves with all 
the written submissions and the issues prior to the hearing, and 
therefore do not require the points to be made at length. 

 
15. A Representor may not introduce any new ground or objection not 

referred to in their written submission. Additional representations 
which do not amount to an amplification of the original representation 
will not be considered by the Sub-Committee. 

 
16. Any person behaving in a disruptive manner will be asked to leave 

the hearing. However, if this occurs, that person will be entitled to 
submit in writing any information they would have been entitled to 
give orally. 

 

ORDER OF PROCEEDINGS AT THE REMOTE HEARING 
 
Chair’s introduction and opening comments 
 

17. The Chair will introduce the Sub-Committee Members and Officers 
and welcome the Applicant and Representors (or their 
representatives), and establish the identity of all who will be taking 
part. 

Page 3



 
18. The Chair will outline the procedure to be followed.  
 
19. The Chair will proceed with the order of business on the agenda. 
 

Licensing Manager 
 

20. When the agenda item relating to the application is reached, the 
Chair will invite the Licensing Officer to present the application. The 
Chair will invite all present, one by one, to ask the Licensing Officer 
questions if they wish, to clarify any points raised in the report. 

 
The Application 
 

21. The Applicant (and/or their representative) will address the Sub-
Committee and present information in support of the application and 
may call any witnesses to support the application, one witness at a 
time [maximum 15 minutes]. 

 
22. The Chair will invite the Representors to ask questions of the 

Applicant in the following order [maximum 5 minutes each party]: 
 

 Police; 
 Other Responsible Authorities; 
 Ward Councillors; 
 Public representation 
 Members of the Sub-Committee; 
 The Sub-Committee’s legal adviser. 

 
The Representations 
 

23. The Chair will invite the Representors and/or their representative in 
the following order to address the Members of the Sub-Committee 
and call any witnesses in support of their representation [maximum 
15 minutes each party]: 

 
 Police 
 Other Responsible Authorities 
 Ward Councillors 
 Public representation 
 Members of the Sub-Committee 

 

Page 4



24. The Chair will invite the Applicant and each other party to ask 
questions of each Representor and/or their witnesses after each 
presentation [maximum 5 minutes per Representor].  The Chair will 
invite the Committee Members to ask questions of each Representor 
(or their representative) and/or their witnesses after each 
presentation. 

 
25. Where there are groups of individuals with a common interest, for 

example local residents, presentation through an appointed 
spokesperson is preferred but not mandated. 

 
Summaries 
 

26. The Chair will invite the Representors (or their representative) in the 
following order to summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes each 
party] 

 
 Police 
 Other Responsible Authorities 
 Ward Councillors 
 Public representation 

 
27. The Chair will invite the Applicant (or their representative) to 

summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes]. 
 

28. The Chair will provide the Sub-Committee with a final opportunity to 
seek clarification from any of the parties on any points raised, or 
seek advice from the Licensing Officer on policy, or from the Legal 
Advisor on law and jurisdiction. 

 
Determination 
 

29. The Sub-Committee will withdraw to consider their decision with the 
Legal Adviser and the Democratic Services Officer in a separate 
private on line meeting. These officers will not comment on the 
merits of the application, but will be present to provide advice on 
legal and procedural points and to record the decision.  

 
30. If the decision is made following the conclusion of the hearing, the 

Sub-Committee will return to the public online meeting to announce 
an outline of the decision to those present. This decision will then be 
communicated in full in writing, including reasons for the decision, to 
the Applicant and all Representors (whether in attendance or not) 

Page 5



usually within 5 working days of the hearing. There can be no further 
questions or statements. 

 
31. If the Sub-Committee does not make a decision on the day of the 

hearing, the decision will be made within 5 working days beginning 
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held. The 
Democratic Services Officer will inform the parties that they are no 
longer required and the decision will be communicated in writing to 
the Applicant and Representors within 5 working days of the decision 
being made. 

 
The notification will include information about the rights of appeal 
against the determination made. 

Page 6



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Licensing/Gambling Hearing 

Date 11 April 2022 

Present Councillors Galvin, Looker and Melly 

 

35. Chair  
 

Resolved: That Cllr Galvin be elected to chair the hearing. 
 

36. Introductions  
 

The Chair introduced those present at the hearing; the Sub-
Committee Members, the Legal Adviser, the Democratic 
Services officer, the Licensing Manager, the Applicant and the 
Representors. 
 

37. Declarations of Interest  
 

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any 
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they 
might have in respect of business on the agenda, if they had not 
already done so in advance on the Register of Interests.  No 
interests were declared. 
 

38. Exclusion of Press and Public  
 

Resolved: That the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting during the sub-committee’s deliberations 
and decision-making at the end of the hearing, on 
the grounds that the public interest in excluding the 
public outweighs the public interest in that part of the 
meeting taking place in public, under Regulation 14 
of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 
2005. 

 

39. Minutes  
 

Resolved: That the minutes of the hearing held on 20 
December 2021 be approved as a correct record, to 
be signed by the Chair at a later date. 

 
 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



40. The Determination of an Application by 2 Many Wines for a 
Section 35(3)(a Variation of a Premises Licence in respect 
of 3 Bishopthorpe Road, York YO23 1NA (CYC-068573)  
 

Members considered an application by 2 Many Wines for the 
variation of a premises licence in respect of 3 Bishopthorpe 
Road, York YO23 1NA. 
 
In considering the application and the representations made, the 
Sub-Committee concluded that the following licensing objectives 
were relevant to this Hearing: 

 
1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance 

 
In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into 
consideration all the evidence and submissions that were 
presented, and determined their relevance to the issues raised 
and the above licensing objectives, including: 
 
1. The application form.  
 
2. The papers before it, including the additional papers 

published in the Agenda Supplement and the written 
representations. 
 

3. The Licensing Manager’s report, and her comments at the 
Hearing.  
 
The Licensing Manager outlined the report and the 
annexes, noting that the premises were not in the 
cumulative impact area (CIA) and confirming that the 
Applicant had carried out the consultation process 
correctly.  She highlighted the fact that the original 
application had been modified following mediation with 
North Yorkshire Police and the Environmental Protection 
Unit, including the changes to the proposed operating 
hours set out in paragraph 5 of the report and the 
additional conditions set out in Annexes 4 and 5. She 
drew attention to the representations from local residents 
contained in Annex 7, and the additional information in the 
Agenda Supplement.  Finally, she advised the Sub 
Committee of the options open to them in determining the 
application. 
 

Page 8



4. The representations made by Cyriaque Lajoinie on behalf 
of 2 Many Wines (henceforth referred to as the Applicant).   

 
The Applicant apologised that the original application had 
caused a stir, and said he thought that a reasonable 
agreement had now been reached.  He stated that the 
reason for the application was to increase the revenue 
from the premises in order to create employment, as well 
as responding to the comments of customers, who often 
asked if they could stay later.  With regard to extending 
the licensed area to the front terrace, many nearby 
businesses had similar terraces and a 9pm closure 
seemed reasonable.  There were signs outside the 
premises to ensure that everyone behaved respectfully.  
The premises were well managed and staff were trained, 
so that there were no problems with the community.   
 
The Applicant went on to state that he and his business 
partner wanted to raise an extra £2k per month to employ 
someone to run the business when they needed to be 
elsewhere.  He outlined the support that the business 
provided to the local community and charities.  He 
explained that the approach that he and his partner took 
was to encourage people not to drink for the sake of 
drinking but to have something to eat as well, as in their 
home countries of France and Italy.  The premises also 
operated as a shop, and a venue for art and sculpture.  
The aim was to be progressive, and to build a good 
relationship with the community to ensure that the 
business survived and continued to operate. 
 
The Applicant then called Ysanne Neal as a witness.  Ms 
Neal said she had previously worked alongside the 
Applicant in a city centre venue. She stated that the 
Bishopthorpe Road premises operated responsibly and 
provided something new in York.  It was a good fit for the 
area and should be allowed the opportunity to expand its 
operation.     
 
In response to questions from Members of the Sub-
Committee, the Applicant stated that: 

 Café-style food was available at the premises every 
day and throughout the day, from 10 am. 

 Late night refreshment was not provided. 

Page 9



(The Licensing Manager confirmed at this point that 
‘late night refreshment’ in licensing terms was hot 
food provided between 11 am and 5 am). 

 He wanted to provide the same service in the 
outside area as inside - that is, table service – so 
that bottles of wine could be served to the outside 
tables. 

 The outside area was enclosed by removable 
furniture, including 2 planters on wheels that also 
served as storage boxes, all of which was brought 
inside after closure. 

 The business was part of the ‘Bishy Road’ 
community. 

 
5. The representations made by Paula Elenor, a local 

resident.   
 
Ms Elenor stated that she welcomed the presence of the 
Applicant’s operation in Bishopthorpe Road and that it was 
a well-run and responsible business that had brought 
benefits to the area.  She also appreciated that in 
choosing to live in close proximity to a number of 
businesses, residents had to weigh up the benefits against 
the inconveniences.  However, she was concerned about 
the proposed extension of operating hours beyond 11pm, 
specifically in relation to the public car parking bay close to 
the sleeping areas in her home, which she feared would 
be used by patrons of the business late at night.  She 
usually went to bed at 10 pm and while some disruption 
was to be expected, the parking bay was closer than the 
people using it probably realised and disturbance was 
caused by car doors, people talking etc.  She was also 
worried that the extension of hours could be the ‘thin end 
of the wedge’. 
 
In response to questions from Members of the Sub-
Committee, Ms Elenor stated that:  

 Another business near her home, the Lal Quila, 
closed at 11pm; there was noise from there but 
mostly from staff. 

 Her experience had been miserable when the 
premises operated as Domino’s 5 years ago, with a 
2 am closing time. 

 She could live with an 11 pm finish time but any 
hours beyond that would be less tolerable. 

Page 10



 She didn’t really want to have to contact the 
applicant every time there was a problem, though he 
had offered this and had been very good. 

 It was the council’s responsibility to consider the 
delicate balance (of residents and businesses) in the 
area. 

 
6. The representations made by Richard Wetherill, a local 

resident. 
 

Mr Wetherill stated that he agreed with Ms Elenor’s 
comments and that Bishopthorpe Road was a fine balance 
of commercial and residential concerns.  His parents had 
lived there for 40 years.  He felt there should be 
consistency in the hours of operation of businesses in the 
area and that the Angel on the Green had set a precedent 
which should be followed.  He said that customer dwell 
time, social chat and raised voices should be taken into 
consideration, as well as the time taken to clear the 
outside area and the noise of cabs arriving.  It was a 
question of striking a balance between levels of noise and 
the hours of operation.  He fully supported the activities in 
Bishopthorpe Road, which was flourishing, but again 
thought a balance must be struck to achieve that unique 
street feel. 
 
The Representors and the Applicant were each then given 
the opportunity to sum up.  
 
Ms Elenor summed up, stating that she had nothing more 
to add to her previous comments but hoped that things 
could be kept friendly and constructive. 
 
Mr Wetherill summed up, asking what would happen if the 
premises were sub-let to an operator who did not have the 
same understanding and approach as the Applicant. 
(The Licensing Manager confirmed at this point that the 
licence remained with the premises until surrendered, 
revoked, or lapsed, and so could be taken over by a 
different operator.)  
 
The Applicant summed up, stating that he checked with 
his customers as they left to ensure they would not be 
driving if they had been drinking.  Staff were also trained 
to ask people to be quiet as they left, and no standing was 

Page 11



allowed in the outside area.  He was not planning to go 
anywhere else, having signed a 10-year lease for the 
premises last year and with children at school in York. 
 
Members of the Sub-Committee sought clarification from 
the Applicant on how he planned to enforce Condition 12 
of the licence (page 53 of the agenda papers), preventing 
open drinks containers being taken off the premises, if the 
outside area was licenced. 
 
The Applicant replied that off-sales would only take place 
inside and that the terrace was always staffed. 

 
In respect of the proposed licence, the Sub-Committee 
had to determine whether the licence application 
demonstrated that the premises would not undermine the 
licensing objectives.  Having regard to the above evidence 
and representations received, the Sub-Committee 
considered the steps which were available to them to take 
under Section 18(3) (a) of the Licensing Act 2003 as it 
considered necessary for the promotion of the Licensing 
Objectives: 

 
Option 1: Modify the conditions of the licence.  This 

option was approved. 
 

Option 2: Reject the whole or part of the application.  
This option was rejected. 

 
Resolved:  That Option 1 be approved and that: 
 
(i) The licensable activities, days and hours be varied as 

follows:   
 

Activity 
 

Timings 
 

Supply of alcohol –  
 on and off the premises 
 

Sunday to Thursday - 10:00  -
23:00 
 
Friday & Saturday – 10:00 -
midnight 
 

Opening hours 
  

Sunday to Thursday – 09:00 – 
23:3 
 

Page 12



Friday & Saturday – 09:00 – 
00:30 
  

Live music 
 

Removed from licence 

Recorded music 
 

Removed from licence 

Performance of plays  
 

Removed from licence 

 
(ii) The currently licensed area be extended to include the 

outside front ground floor area on Bishopthorpe Road 
shown edged red on the plan submitted with the 
application (“the outside seating area”) SUBJECT TO the 
above timings and the restrictions set out in the additional 
and varied conditions below. 

  
(iii) The following additional and varied conditions be imposed: 
 

(a) The outside seating area shall only be open between 
the hours of 10:00 and 21:00 daily.   
 

(b) There shall be no more than 20 seats provided for 
customer use in the outside seating area. 
 

(c) Customers shall be served by way of table service 
only in the outside seating area.   
  

(d) There shall be no vertical drinking in the outside 
seating area. 
 

(e) All tables and chairs in the outside seating area shall 
be stacked immediately after 21:00 daily and shall 
be stored away securely within the premises when 
closed. 
 

(f) The main door for the premises will be kept closed 
after 23:00 hours daily other than for immediate 
ingress and egress. 
 

(g) Bottles shall only be disposed of between 07:00 and 
23:00 each day. 
 

Page 13



(h) A direct telephone number for the Designated 
Premises Supervisor shall be provided to local 
businesses and residents.  
 

(i) Condition 2 in Annex 2 of the licence shall be varied 
to refer to ‘inside the premises’. 
 

(j) Condition 7 in Annex 2 of the current licence shall be 
removed from the licence. 

 

Reasons:   
 

(i) The Sub-Committee must promote the licensing objectives 
and must have regard to the Guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Council’s 
own Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 

(ii) The Sub-Committee noted that the premises are not 
located within an area where a Cumulative Impact Policy 
applies. 
 

(iii) The Applicant had amended the application to scale back 
the licensable activities and timings proposed. The 
Applicant had agreed specific conditions with the Police 
and Public Protection and that this had led to the absence 
of representations on their part.   
 

(iv) The Sub-Committee noted the concerns of Representors 
that an extension of licensable activities and extension of 
the licensed area at the premises to include the area to the 
front pavement on Bishophtorpe Road would lead to an 
increase in public nuisance.  However, the Sub Committee 
felt that with the imposition of suitable conditions, it was 
unlikely that public nuisance to local nearby residents 
would be caused by these variations to the licence. 

 
(v) The Sub-Committee did not consider that the proposed 

extension to the hours in which alcohol would be supplied 
and the use of the outside area would lead to crime and 
disorder or that the proposed licence variation would have 
any material impact on the licensing objectives.  

 
 
 

Cllr J Galvin, Chair 
[The meeting started at 10.07 am and finished at 11.30 am]. 

Page 14



 

 

  
 

   

 
Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee 
 

            16 May 2022 

Report from the Director – Environment, Transport & Planning  

Section 35(3) (a) Application for variation of a premises licence for 
The Hilt, 57 Goodramgate, York YO1 7LS  

Summary 

1. This report seeks Members determination of an application for the 
variation of a premises licence, which has been made under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

2. Application reference number:   CYC - 066940 

3. Name of applicant: Hilt Adventures Ltd    

4. Type of authorisation applied for: Variation of Premises Licence 

5. Summary of application:   

The application seeks to remove and amend conditions on the licence 
as follows: 

Conditions 9, 11 & 14 to be removed. 

9. The applicant must conduct a full risk assessment in respect of 

the axe throwing with a zero tolerance policy for consumption of 

alcohol prior to throwing. Customers must be made aware of this 

policy and a documented copy must be kept. This document must 

be kept for a minimum of 12 months and must be made available 

upon reasonable request from the Police or Responsible authority.  

  

11. No customer who is identified as intending to take part in axe 

throwing shall be served any alcohol prior to throwing. They may be 

served alcohol following their throwing session only. 

  

14. No alcohol is permitted in the ‘throwing area’ only in the 

restaurant/bar area as shown on the plans. 

 

Page 15 Agenda Item 6



 

The suggested replacement conditions are contained within the 
operating schedule at paragraphs 10 to 14. 

There is no change to the hours or licensable activity being sought by 
this variation application. 

Background 

6. A copy of the application can be found at Annex 1.   
 
7.  The premises is described in the application as an indoor axe 

throwing centre with restaurant/café. 
 
8. The premises was granted a premises licence by the City of York 

Council in October 2020, a copy of the current licence is at Annex 2. 
 
       Promotion of Licensing Objectives  

9.  The operating schedule submitted by the applicant shows that the 
licensing objectives would be met as follows: 

10. General  

a) All alcohol pre-purchased via booking. 
b) No alcohol sold to axe throwers on site. 
c) Strict enforcement of 2 drink limit. 
d) No spirits. 
e) All coaches trained to oversee sessions, one dedicated coach per 

group with max group size of 12. 
f) Axes are light and not kept sharp, targets and bays designed to 

eliminate bouncing, see addendum documents.  
g) Alcohol consumption is safest when controlled by organiser. 
h) Clearly communicated terms and conditions sent digitally at time 

of booking, again at check in and then once during safety briefing 
at start of session. 

 
11.  The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
 

a) Axes locked away in staff room when not in use. 
b) Two alcoholic drinks per customer. 
c) Controlled session times, maximum duration of 75 minutes. 
d) Access to axe throwing bays controlled by manager. 
e) No public access to axe throwing area when sessions are not 

taking place. 
 

12.  Public Safety 

Page 16



 

a) Regularly reviewed and updated safety standards and policies. 
b) Axes never removed from bays during sessions, controlled by 

dedicated axe coach at all times. 
c) Bays are separated by a barrier and corridor from the restaurant 

and bar area. 
 

13.  The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

a) All staff are trained to monitor alcohol consumption and enforce 
health and safety policy. 

b) No axe throwing sessions to run past 20:15. 
 

14.  The Protection of Children from Harm 
 

a) No alcohol permitted in groups where alcohol has been 
purchased. 

b) No persons under 18 permitted to attend in groups who jave 
purchased alcohol. 

c) Propose designating venue as over 18 only unless food is being 
served. 

 
    Special Policy Consideration 

15.  This premises is located within the cumulative impact assessment 
area which was approved by Council on 21 March 2019.  The 
assessment can be found at Annex 3.  Section 9 of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy which deals with Cumulative Impact can be found at 
Annex 4.  During the representation period the Council published a 
revised Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact 
Assessment, the revised Policy and Assessment were approved by 
Council on 24 March 2022.  This premises still falls within the 
cumulative impact assessment area.   

 
 Consultation  

 
16. Consultation was carried out by the applicant in accordance with s13, 

and s17 (5) of the Act and Regulation 42, Parts 2 and 4 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises 
Certificates) Regulations 2005, which concern the displaying of a 
notice on the premises and an advertisement in a local paper giving 
details of the application and serving a copy of the application on all 
responsible authorities.  The applicant complied with all statutory 
requirements.  In addition the relevant ward councillors and/or parish 
council were notified by way of register.    

Page 17



 

17. All procedural aspects of this application have been complied with. 
 

Summary of Representations made by Responsible Authorities 
 
18.  North Yorkshire Police have made representations stating all four 

licensing objectives would be compromised if this application were 
granted. Furthermore the premises is situated within the Cumulative 
Impact Area and they request this application be refused.  Their 
representation can be found at Annex 5.  

 
19. City of York Council Public Protection (Health and Safety) has made 

a representation stating the objective of Public Safety will be 
compromised if this application were granted. Their representation 
can be found at Annex 6.   

 
        Summary of Representations made by Other Parties  
 
20.  There have been no relevant representations received from other 

persons.  

21. A map showing the general area around the venue is attached at 
Annex 7. 

22. The mandatory conditions that will be attached to this licence if 
granted (if they apply) can be found at Annex 8.  The Legislation and 
Policy considerations can be found at Annex 9.   

Options  

23.  By virtue of s35(4) of the Act, the Committee have the following 
options available to them in making their decision: -  

24. Option 1:  Modify the conditions of the licence 

25. Option 2:  Reject the whole or part of the application. 
and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any 
of them is altered or omitted or any new condition is added. 

 
Analysis 

26. The following could be the result of any decision made this Sub 
Committee:- 

27. Option 1: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by 
any of the representors. 

 

Page 18



 

28. Option 2: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by the 
applicant or any of the representors. 

 
Council Plan 
 

29. The Licensing Act 2003 has four objectives the prevention of crime 
and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the 
protection of children from harm.   

30. By taking the statutory requirements of the Licensing Act into 
consideration, as well as the four licensing objectives when 
determining licensing applications the Council are supporting the new 
and existing licence trade, as well as local residents and 
businesses.  The functions support the Council’s Plan of safe 
communities and culture for all, and a good quality of life for everyone.  

 

 Implications 

31.  

 Financial  - N/A 

 Human Resources (HR) – N/A 

 Equalities – N/A      

 Legal – This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by the 
applicant or any of the representors. 

 

 Crime and Disorder - The Committee is reminded of their duty 
under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime and 
disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s 
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in 
the city. 

 

 Information Technology (IT) – N/A 

 Property – N/A 

 Other – none     
 
Risk Management 
 

32. All Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee have received full 
training on the Act and the regulations governing hearings.  They are 
aware that any decision made which is unreasonable or unlawful 

Page 19



 

could be open to challenge resulting in loss of image, reputation and 
potential financial penalty. 

 
33. The report details the options available to the panel in determining the 

application and recommends that a decision be reached.  There are 
no risks involved with this recommendation. 

  
 Recommendations 

34.  Members determine the application. 
Reason:  To address the representations received as required by the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

 
 
Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Lesley Cooke 
Licensing Manager 
 
Tel No. 01904 551515 

James Gilchrist 
Director Environment, Transport & Planning 
 
 

Report 
Approved 

√ 
Date 

22.04.2022 
 

    
Specialist Implications Officer(s)  
Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
Ext: 1004 
 

Wards Affected:    

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
Background Papers: 
 

Annex 1   -  Application form 
Annex 2   -  Copy of Current Premises Licence 
Annex 3   -  Cumulative Impact  
Annex 4   -  Licensing Policy Annex 
Annex 5   -  North Yorkshire Police Representation 
Annex 6   -  Public Protection (Health & Safety) Representation 
Annex 7   -  Map of area 
Annex 8   -  Mandatory Conditions 
Annex 9   -  Legislation and Policy 
 

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



           Annex 2 

LICENSING ACT 2003 

PREMISES LICENCE 
 

Schedule 12 

Part A 

  

 

Part 1 Premises details 

Postal address of premises: 

The Hilt 

Unit 2  

57 Goodramgate 

 

Post town: York Post code: YO1 7LS 

Telephone number: 01904 849596 

 

 

Expiry date: This licence has no expiry date. 

 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 

 

Supply of Alcohol 

 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 

 

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 

Monday 

09:00 - 22:30 

 

Tuesday 

09:00 - 22:30 

Wednesday 

09:00 - 22:30 

Thursday 

09:00 - 22:30 

Friday 

09:00 - 22:30 

Saturday 

09:00 - 22:30 

Sunday 

09:00 - 22:30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Premises licence number  

CYC - 66940 

 

 

Page 39



 

The Opening Hours of the Premises 

 

Monday 

09:00 - 23:00 

 

Tuesday 

09:00 - 23:00 

Wednesday 

09:00 - 23:00 

Thursday 

09:00 - 23:00 

Friday 

09:00 - 23:00 

Saturday 

09:00 - 23:00 

Sunday 

09:00 - 23:00 

 

   

 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 

supplies: 

  

On and off the premises  

 

 

Part 2  

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder 

of premises licence: 

Name:  Hilt Adventures Ltd 

 

Address:   20 Bootham Terrace 

  York 

  YO30 7DH 

 

Telephone number: 07507 425248 

 

Email address: alex@thehilt.co.uk 

 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 

applicable):  

11925760 

 

 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 

premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol: 

 

Name:   Jacob John Mayled 

 

Address:   24 Filey Terrace 

  York 

  YO30 7AD 

 

Telephone number:  None 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 

premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:  

 

City of York Council 

CYC-069799 

 

 

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 

MANDATORY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 

1.  In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence 

authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions. 

 

2.  The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence - 

a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises 

licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or 

his personal licence is suspended. 

 

3.   The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be 

made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 

 

4.  (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 

arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 

activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale 

or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises – 

a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

encourage individuals to – 

i. drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 

supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible 

person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

ii. drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 

manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 

reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a 

manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in 

the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage 

or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any 

favourable manner; 

e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where 

that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).  

 

5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 

 

6.  (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an 

age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 

alcohol. 

     (2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure 

that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification 

policy. 

Page 41



     (3)  The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 

18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, 

before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either – 

a) a holographic mark, or 

b) an ultraviolet feature. 

 

7.  The responsible person must ensure that – 

a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 

premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance 

ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in 

the following measures – 

i. beer or cider: ½ pint; 

ii. gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and 

iii. still wine in a glass: 125ml; 

b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 

available to customers on the premises; and 

c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol 

to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 

 

MANDATORY CONDITION - ALCOHOL PRICING 

 

1.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off 

the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 

2.  For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 – 

a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 

b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula – P = D + (D x V) 

where – 

i. P is the permitted price, 

ii. D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on 

the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 

iii. V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value 

added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 

premises licence – 

i. the holder of the premises licence, 

ii. the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 

iii. the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 

licence; 

d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 

club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in 

a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 

Tax Act 1994. 

 

3.  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 

taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of  

paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next 

day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 

alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second 

day. 

 

Page 42



MANDATORY CONDITION:  DOOR SUPERVISION 

 

1.  In accordance with section 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by section 25 Violent 

Crime Reduction Act 2006), where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified 

times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the 

licence must include a condition that each such individual must - 

a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security 

Industry Act 2001; or 

b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act. 

 

2.  But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed - 

 

a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security 

Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films), 

or 

b) in respect of premises in relation to – 

i. any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being 

used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice 

authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence, or 

ii. any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by 

regulations under that Act). 

 

3.  For the purposes of this section - 

a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule 

applies, and which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act (see section 3(2) 

of that Act), and 

b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as 

it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule. 

 

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 

Licensing Objectives 
 

1. Documented staff training will be given regarding staff’s obligation under the Licensing Act 

in respect of the:- 

• Retail sale of alcohol 

• Age verification policy 

• Conditions attached to the Premises Licence 

• Permitted Licensable activities 

• The Licensing objectives and 

• The Opening Times of the venue. 

Such records shall be kept for a minimum of one year and will be made available immediately 

upon request from any Responsible Authority. 

  

2. A Refusals Register and Incident Report Register will be kept. Such documents will record 

incidents of staff refusals of alcohol sales to under-age or drunk people as well as incidents of 

any anti-social behaviour and ejections from the premises. 

Such records shall be kept for at least one year. [For the avoidance of doubt, the one year 

period relates to each respective entry in the log book and runs from the date of that particular 

entry]: They will be made available immediately upon a reasonable request from any 

responsible authority. 

  

Page 43



3. Clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly 

  

4. The licence holder will operate a Challenge 25 Age Verification Policy at the premises. 

  

5. The only acceptable proof of age identification shall be a current Passport, photo card 

Driving Licence, Military ID card, or identification carrying the PASS logo (until other effective 

identification technology e.g thumb print or pupil recognition, is adopted by the Premises 

Licence Holder). 

  

6. No open drinks or drinking glasses shall be taken out of the licensed premises or (licensed 

area) onto the pavement or highway. 

  

7. The outside area will be regularly cleared and kept tidy. 

  

8. A digital colour CCTV system will be installed to cover the premises and recorded coverage 

will include all areas (including outside areas) to where public have access to consume alcohol. 

• It will be maintained, working and recording at all times when the premises are open. 

• The recordings should be of good evidential quality to be produced in Court or other 

such hearing. 

• Copies of the recordings will be kept available for any Responsible Authority for 28 

days. Subject to Data Protection requirements. 

• Copies of the recordings shall be made available to any Responsible Authority within 48 

hrs upon request. Subject to Data Protection requirements. 

• Copies of the recordings will display the correct time and date of the recording. 

• It is the responsibility of the management to ensure that there are sufficient members 

of staff available during the hours of operation to be able to download evidence from 

the CCTV system at the request of the police or responsible authority. Subject to Data 

Protection requirements. 

  

9. The applicant must conduct a full risk assessment in respect of the axe throwing with a zero 

tolerance policy for consumption of alcohol prior to throwing. Customers must be made aware 

of this policy and a documented copy must be kept. This document must be kept for a 

minimum of 12 months and must be made available upon reasonable request from the Police 

or Responsible authority.  

  

10. Clear notices must be displayed in the premises explaining, in brief, the alcohol policy. 

  

11. No customer who is identified as intending to take part in axe throwing shall be served any 

alcohol prior to throwing. They may be served alcohol following their throwing session only. 

  

12. All customers must be supervised at all times when taking part in axe throwing. 

  

13. Any axes on the premises which are not being used for the sporting activities must be 

secured in a location which is not readily accessible to the public. 

  

14. No alcohol is permitted in the ‘throwing area’ only in the restaurant/bar area as shown on 

the plans. 

  

Page 44



15. The venue shall operate predominantly as an Axe Throwing Activities Centre and 

restaurant/café not a vertical drinking establishment. Alcohol shall be ancillary to this. 

  

16. It is the responsibility of the Designated Premises Supervisor / Manager on duty for risk 

assessing the need for Door Supervisors at the premises. Special consideration should be 

given to the need for Door staff on Fridays/Saturdays or any Sunday leading into a bank 

holiday Monday. 

 

17. All alcohol for off premises sales shall be only in sealed containers. 

 

 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing 

authority 
 

No hearing held 

 

 

Annex 4 – Approved Plan 
 
Plan Number:  Signed and Dated September 2020 
 
 

 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of Date:   8 October 2020 

The Corporate Director of Place         25/02/2022 (DPS Variation) 

 

Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552422 

Hazel Court EcoDepot Fax:     01904 551590 

James Street Email:  licensing@york.gov.uk  

York Website: www.york.gov.uk/licensing 

YO10 3DS 

 

Page 45

http://www.york.gov.uk/licensing


 

PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY  
 

Part B 
 

 

Part 1 Premises details 

Postal address of premises: 

The Hilt 
Unit 2 
57 Goodramgate 
 

Post town: York Post code: YO1 7LS 

Telephone number: 01904 849596 

 

Where the licence is time limited the date: 

 

This licence has no expiry date. 

 

 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 

 

Supply of Alcohol 

 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 

 

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 

Monday 

09:00 - 22:30 

 

Tuesday 

09:00 - 22:30 

Wednesday 

09:00 - 22:30 

Thursday 

09:00 - 22:30 

 

Friday 

09:00 - 22:30 

Saturday 

09:00 - 22:30 

Sunday 

09:00 - 22:30 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Premises licence number  

CYC - 66940 

 

 

Page 46



The Opening Hours of the Premises 

 

Monday 

09:00 - 23:00 

 

Tuesday 

09:00 - 23:00 

Wednesday 

09:00 - 23:00 

Thursday 

09:00 - 23:00 

Friday 

09:00 - 23:00 

Saturday 

09:00 - 23:00 

Sunday 

09:00 - 23:00 

 

   

 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 

supplies: 

  

On and off the premises  

 

 

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence: 

Name:  Hilt Adventures Ltd 

 

Address:   20 Bootham Terrace 

  York 

  YO30 7DH 

   

   

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 

applicable):  

11925760 

 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the 

supply of alcohol: 

 

Jacob John Mayled 

 

 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 

 

Challenge 25 policy in operation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of Date:   8 October 2020 

The Corporate Director of Place         25/02/2022 (DPS Variation) 

 

Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552422 

Hazel Court EcoDepot Fax:     01904 551590 

James Street Email:  licensing@york.gov.uk  

York Website: www.york.gov.uk/licensing 

YO10 3DS 

Page 47

http://www.york.gov.uk/licensing


 

 

Page 48



ANNEX 3 
 

Cumulative Impact  
 
1. Cumulative impact has been included within the Section 182 guidance issued by the 

Home Office since the commencement of the Act.  Cumulative impact assessments 
were introduced at Section 5A of the Act by the Police and Crime Act 2017, with effect 
from 6 April 2018.  This provides provision for licensing authorities to publish a 
document, cumulative impact assessment, stating that the licensing authority 
considers that a number of relevant authorisations in respect of premises in one or 
more parts of its area, described in the assessment, is such that it is likely that it would 
be inconsistent with the authority’s duty under the Act to grant any further relevant 
authorisations in respect of premises in that part or those parts.   

 
2. Relevant authorisations means: 

 premises licence 

 club premises certificate 
 
3. Cumulative impact is the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives 

of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area.  
 
4. The Council has included a Cumulative Impact Policy within its Statement of Licensing 

Policy since 2005, in relation to an area within York city centre.  Due to the changes 
within the city centre, mainly the locations where licensed premises are predominately 
operating, this area has increased over the years.    

 
Cumulative Impact Assessment 
 
5. As required by the Act the Council has reviewed the cumulative impact area following 

the receipt of evidence provided by North Yorkshire Police and the Councils Public 
Protection Service (noise).  The Council has published its first cumulative impact 
assessment (assessment) in relation to an area that has been identified in York city 
centre.  The assessment is available on the Council website or from the Licensing 
Section.  The assessment will be reviewed at least every three years as required by 
the Act.  A map showing the area can be found in the assessment.   

 
6. As required by the Act the Council has formally consulted on the assessment.  
  
7. By publishing the assessment the Council is setting down a strong statement of intent 

about its approach to considering applications for grant and variation of premises 
licences or club premises certificates in the area described.  The Council must have 
regard to the assessment when determining or revising this Statement of Licensing 
Policy.  The assessment does not change the fundamental way that a licensing 
decision is made, each application will be considered on its own merits.  It is open for 
the Council to grant an application where it is considered appropriate and where the 
applicant can demonstrate in the operating schedule that they would not be adding to 
the cumulative impact.  Applications in the area covered by the assessment should 
therefore give consideration to potential cumulative impact issues when setting out the 
steps that will be taken to promote the licensing objectives.  Where relevant 
representations are received and the Council determines to grant an application 
reasons for granting the application will be given to the applicant, the Chief Officer of 

Page 49



Police and all parties who made a relevant representation, with the reasons for 
departing from the Policy.    

 
8. Where no relevant representations are received an application within the cumulative 

impact area will be granted in terms consistent with the operating schedule. 
 
9. Applications for new premises licences or variations for premises situated within the 

cumulative impact area that are likely to add to the cumulative impact already 
experienced will normally be refused if relevant representations are received.   The 
applicant must demonstrate through the operating schedule, the steps that they intend 
to take so that the Council and responsible authorities can be satisfied that granting a 
new or varied licence will not add to the cumulative impact already being experienced.   

 
10. The onus is on the applicant to demonstrate to the responsible authorities the 

suitability of how their proposal will not add to the cumulative impact.  To assist this 
process the Council recommends early consultation with responsible authorities; this 
can be done directly with those authorities or through the Council’s Licensing Section.   

 
11. The Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment were approved 

by the City of York on the 21 March 2019.   
 

Cumulative Impact Area  
 
12. The published assessment relates to an area within York city centre.  This area has 

been identified because evidence shows that the cumulative impact of the number and 
concentration of licensed premises in this area continue to adversely affect residents, 
visitors and other businesses and therefore adversely affecting the promotion of the 
licensing objectives: 

 

 prevention of crime and disorder 

 prevention of public nuisance 
 
13. North Yorkshire Police and Public Protection have provided information that the nature 

of this area is such that the problems and cumulative impact directly relates to the 
style of businesses operating in the area and their clientele, due to the concentration 
of:  

 drink led premises – pubs, bars, nightclubs and restaurants/cafes; 

 entertainment premises – pubs, bars and nightclubs providing entertainment, 
especially late at night into the early hours of the morning; 

 late night refreshment premises – takeaways; and 

 off licence premises – supermarkets and convenience stores. 
 
14. A red zone has also been identified in this area due to the high concentration of 

licensed premises, the impact of which have lead to a high level of occurrences in 
relation to crime and disorder related issues.   Therefore, the Council should refuse all 
applications within the red zone where relevant representations are received, unless 
the applicant can show how their application would not lead to an increase in the 
impact of licensed premises in this zone.  A map showing the red zone can be found in 
the assessment.   

 

Page 50



ANNEX 4 
 

9.   Cumulative Impact  
 
 
9.1 Cumulative impact has been included within the Section 182 guidance issued by the 

Home Office since the commencement of the Act.  Cumulative impact assessments 
were introduced at Section 5A of the Act by the Police and Crime Act 2017, with 
effect from 6 April 2018.  This provides provision for licensing authorities to publish 
a document, cumulative impact assessment, stating that the licensing authority 
considers that a number of relevant authorisations in respect of premises in one or 
more parts of its area, described in the assessment, is such that it is likely that it 
would be inconsistent with the authority’s duty under the Act to grant any further 
relevant authorisations in respect of premises in that part or those parts.   

 
9.2 Relevant authorisations means: 

 premises licence 

 club premises certificate 
 
9.3 Cumulative impact is the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing 

objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area.  
 
9.4 The Council has included a Cumulative Impact Policy within its Statement of 

Licensing Policy since 2005, in relation to an area within York city centre.  Due to 
the changes within the city centre, mainly the locations where licensed premises are 
predominately operating, this area has increased over the years.   

 
Cumulative Impact Assessment 
 
9.5 As required by the Act the Council has reviewed the cumulative impact area 

following the receipt of evidence provided by North Yorkshire Police and the 
Councils Public Protection Service (noise).  The Council has published its first 
cumulative impact assessment (assessment) in relation to an area that has been 
identified in York city centre.  The assessment is available on the Council website or 
from the Licensing Section.  The assessment will be reviewed at least every three 
years as required by the Act.  A map showing the area can be found in the 
assessment.   

 
9.6 As required by the Act the Council has formally consulted on the assessment.  
  
9.7 By publishing the assessment the Council is setting down a strong statement of 

intent about its approach to considering applications for grant and variation of 
premises licences or club premises certificates in the area described.  The Council 
must have regard to the assessment when determining or revising this Statement of 
Licensing Policy.  The assessment does not change the fundamental way that a 
licensing decision is made, each application will be considered on its own merits.  It 
is open for the Council to grant an application where it is considered appropriate 
and where the applicant can demonstrate in the operating schedule that they would 
not be adding to the cumulative impact.  Applications in the area covered by the 
assessment should therefore give consideration to potential cumulative impact 
issues when setting out the steps that will be taken to promote the licensing 
objectives.  Where relevant representations are received and the Council 

Page 51



determines to grant an application reasons for granting the application will be given 
to the applicant, the Chief Officer of Police and all parties who made a relevant 
representation, with the reasons for departing from the Policy.    

 
9.8 Where no relevant representations are received an application within the cumulative 

impact area will be granted in terms consistent with the operating schedule. 
 
9.9 Applications for new premises licences or variations for premises situated within the 

cumulative impact area that are likely to add to the cumulative impact already 
experienced will normally be refused if relevant representations are received.   The 
applicant must demonstrate through the operating schedule, the steps that they 
intend to take so that the Council and responsible authorities can be satisfied that 
granting a new or varied licence will not add to the cumulative impact already being 
experienced.   

 
9.10 The onus is on the applicant to demonstrate to the responsible authorities the 

suitability of how their proposal will not add to the cumulative impact.  To assist this 
process the Council recommends early consultation with responsible authorities; 
this can be done directly with those authorities or through the Council’s Licensing 
Section.   

 
Cumulative Impact Area  
 
9.11 The published assessment relates to an area within York city centre.  This area has 

been identified because evidence shows that the cumulative impact of the number 
and concentration of licensed premises in this area continue to adversely affect 
residents, visitors and other businesses and therefore adversely affecting the 
promotion of the licensing objectives: 

 

 prevention of crime and disorder 

 prevention of public nuisance 
 
9.12 North Yorkshire Police and Public Protection have provided information that the 

nature of this area is such that the problems and cumulative impact directly relates 
to the style of businesses operating in the area and their clientele, due to the 
concentration of:  

 drink led premises – pubs, bars, nightclubs and restaurants/cafes; 

 entertainment premises – pubs, bars and nightclubs providing entertainment, 
especially late at night into the early hours of the morning; 

 late night refreshment premises – takeaways; and 

 off licence premises – supermarkets and convenience stores. 
 
9.13  A red zone has also been identified in this area due to the high concentration of 

licensed premises, the impact of which have lead to a high level of occurrences in 
relation to crime and disorder related issues.   Therefore, the Council should refuse 
all applications within the red zone where relevant representations are received, 
unless the applicant can show how their application would not lead to an increase in 
the impact of licensed premises in this zone.  A map showing the red zone can be 
found in the assessment.   

 
 

Page 52



  

 
 

  

582 – 05/2018 

 

NOTICE OF RELEVANT REPRESENTATION FOR A 
PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 
 
North Yorkshire Police hereby give notice of objection to the Premises Licence as listed below: 
 

Postal Address of premises or club premises: 
The Hilt 
57B Goodramgate 
  
 

Post town: York Post code (if known): YO1 7LS  

 
Notice of Objection relates to the following licensing objective: (Please tick one or more boxes) 
 

1.  The prevention of crime and disorder  

2.  Public safety  

3.  Prevention of Public Nuisance  

4.  The protection of children from harm  

  
 

GROUNDS FOR RELEVANT REPRESENTATION 
Please provide as much information as possible to support this relevant representation: 
(e.g. please list any additional information, e.g. dates of problems which are included in the grounds for review) 

This application relates to a Full Variation for Hilt Adventures Ltd 57B Goodramgate in York's Cumulative Impact Area. 
 
The application seeks to revise the conditions on the existing licence, thereby removing the conditions for prohibiting 
alcohol from being served to customers before they take part in any axe throwing activity and allowing alcohol in the 
axe throwing areas. 
 
The premises sits within York's CIA (Cumulative impact assessment area) an area which The City of York Council has 
identified as being under the most stress from crime and disorder and public nuisance in their statement of licensing 
policy. The current policy came in to effect on 21st March 2019 and runs until 2024 and which states:- 
 
“9.13 North Yorkshire Police and Public Protection have provided information that the nature of this area is such that 
the problems and cumulative impact directly relates to the style of businesses operating in the area and their clientele, 
due to the concentration of:  
• drink led premises – pubs, bars, nightclubs and restaurants/cafes;  
• entertainment  
premises – pubs, bars and nightclubs providing entertainment, especially late at night into the early hours of the 
morning;  
• late night refreshment premises – takeaways; and  
• off licence premises – supermarkets and convenience stores.  
 
Furthermore the CIA policy states:  

Page 53



  

 
 

  

 
 

“An applicant wishing to obtain a new licence or vary a licence for premises, within the cumulative impact area, must 
demonstrate through the operating schedule, the steps that they intend to take so that the Council and responsible 
authorities can be satisfied that granting a new or varied licence will not add to the cumulative impact already being 
experienced.”  
 
The Premises first obtained a Premises Licence in October 2020 and North Yorkshire Police liaised with the applicant in 
respect of proportionate and tailored conditions to ensure the Promotion of the four Licensing objectives:- 
 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder  
Prevention of Public Nuisance 
Public Safety 
Protection of Children from Harm. 
 
Specific conditions were agreed as per Annex 2 on the Premises Licence which North Yorkshire Police deemed at the 
time was in line with the Section 182 Statutory Guidance Para 8.43,  
 
“Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they will manage any potential risks. 
Where specific polices apply in the area (for example, a cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected to 
demonstrate an understanding of how the policy impacts on their application: any measures they will take to mitigate 
the impact; and why they consider the application should be an exception to the policy".  
 
 
 demonstrating that their application was an exception to the policy as their primary focus was to operate as an Axe 
Throwing Venue, with alcohol being ancillary.  
The Premises has limited areas only for alcohol and a zero-tolerance approach to alcohol on the premises for 
participants in any activity thereby promoting the Licensing objectives. 
 
This application seeks to revise the following conditions:- 
9) “The applicant must conduct a full risk assessment in respect of the Axe throwing with a zero-tolerance policy for 
consumption of alcohol prior to throwing. Customers must be made aware of this policy and a documented copy must 
be kept. This document must be kept for a minimum of 12 months and must be made available upon reasonable request 
from the Police or Responsible Authority.” 
11) “No Customer who is identified as intending to take part in axe throwing shall be served any alcohol prior to 
throwing. They may be served alcohol following their throwing session only.” 
14) “No alcohol is permitted in the “throwing area” only in the restaurant/bar area as shown on the plans.” 
 
The applicant has provided the following information as an alternative if the above conditions are revised. 
“There will be a 1 or 2 drink limit depending on how many drinks have been purchased with the booking. This way axe 
throwers will not be able to consume enough to reach any dangerous level of intoxication in the 75 minutes of their 
session.” 
This is a very bold statement to make. What is the applicant classing as a “dangerous level”?  
If persons have consumed any alcohol prior to attending the Premises which the venue has no control over or way of 
knowing,  but then propose allowing further alcohol before and during the Axe throwing this could have an adverse 
effect on an individual thereby increasing the risk of an incident taking place involving an Axe which is a weapon 
whether sharp or blunt. 
 
By removing condition 11 the premises is increasing the risk of intoxication levels prior to participating in the Axe 
Throwing activity again undermining the Licensing objective of Public Safety. 
 

Page 54



  

 

  

 

Allowing alcohol in the Axe Throwing Bays removing condition 14 does not mitigate risks of Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder or Public Safety and the applicant has not provided any evidence to address this aspect within the application. 
 
The application states “All staff will be trained and well informed on all aspects of alcohol service, premises licence 
conditions, and the law surrounding the safe service of alcohol. ( Please see the enclosed server of alcohol training 
record). “ There is no enclosed alcohol training record with the application. 
 
Section M of the application part a) states 
“STRICT ENFORCEMENT OF 2 DRINK LIMIT,NO SPIRITS. ALL COACHES TRAINED TO OVERSEEE SESSIONS. ONCE 
DEDICATED COACH PER GROUP. MAXIUM GROUP SIZE 12”. 
As such if there is twelve persons in one area that is 12 drinks (potentially 24 if they can obtain the maximum two drinks 
at the same time) and one coach to oversee the group. How is it feasible for one person to be assisting 
customers/demonstrating axe throwing and overseeing the consumption of alcohol? 
 
The application is inconsistent regarding the aspect of under 18’s attending the venue. 
The Risk assessment provided under Alcohol/Drugs states the following:-  
“ Groups consuming alcohol must be made up exclusively of over 18’s”. It also sates “No alcohol to be served if under 
18s present in that group”.  
Section M para e)“ No persons under 18 permitted to attend in Groups who have purchased alcohol. Propose 
designating venue as over 18 only unless food being served”.  
However the additional information  “Any group purchasing alcohol must be made up of exclusively of over 18’s 
ensuring the safety of any minors participating in activities”.   
This undermines the Protection of Children from Harm Licensing objective as if alcohol is being served to a group made 
up of mostly over 18’s but does contain minors and as referred to above there is only one coach monitoring who is 
consuming alcohol how can they ensure that a minor will not access alcohol? 
 
The application states “No participant permitted to throw if they are suspected of being intoxicated”. Is this before or 
during the Axe throwing if they are allowed to consume more alcohol? Also what experience and qualifications does the 
member of staff Richard Thurbon who has completed the risk assessment have in respect of Health and Safety 
Regulations. What criteria are staff using to determine if someone is intoxicated? 
 
On Wednesday 6th April 2022 at 1500hrs I had a Teams Video Call with the Premise Licence Holder Mr Joshua Goodwin, 
as he resides outside the UK, so we were unable to meet in person.  
I discussed my concerns in respect of the application particularly allowing customers to be served alcohol during Axe 
Throwing Sessions. I asked about the reference in the application information to “our competitors have recently 
managed to obtain a crucial edge over us”.  
I explained that as the Force Licensing Manager for North Yorkshire Police, which is the biggest county in England I can 
confirm that there are only two Axe Throwing venues that have a Premise Licence to sell alcohol, The Hilt, and an 
additional Premises in Craven District both have the same Conditions, so his venue was not being disadvantaged by 
another competitor in the locality having different conditions. 
I further expressed my concern in respect of The Hilt Variation application to allow alcohol during axe throwing sessions. 
The Axe Throwing sessions are 75 minutes and the venue is presently able to offer alcohol to customers following their 
session. By allowing alcohol before and during the Activity sessions could increase the risk of harm to staff, and other 
customers.  
 
I asked Mr Goodwin if he had considered York’s Statement of Licensing Policy and in particular the Cumulative Impact 
Area where his premises is located. He did not appear to be familiar with this.  I explained that considering the policy, I 
did not see this application as an exception to the policy nor had he provided sufficient information within the 
application to mitigate concerns or promote the four licensing objectives. Based on this I advised North Yorkshire Police 
would make a representation to the Licensing Authority objecting to the application.  
 

Page 55



  

 
 

  

 
 

In conclusion, the application is littered with inconsistencies regarding if the Venue is to operate as a ‘Over 18’ venue 
only.  
It does not provide any substantial information how risks would be managed if conditions 9, 11 and 14 were revised.  
It lacks detail on how it would ensure the promotion of the Licensing Objectives in an area that is already experiencing 
high levels of disorder.  
The applicant has failed to consider York’s statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
North Yorkshire Police cannot support this application in the Cumulative Impact Area, for the reasons highlighted and 
respectfully ask members to refuse the application. 

 
 
 
Signature:  J Booth      Date: 08/04/22 
 

Contact name: PS 133 Jackie Booth  
Address for correspondence:  Alcohol Licensing Department Fulford Road Police Station 

Post town:  York Post code:  YO10 4BY Tel. number (if any):  01609 643273 

Email address if preferred option of contact:  NYPLicensing@northyorkshire.pnn.police.uk 

 

Page 56



Annex 6 
 
The Hilt Premises Licence Variation 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
I write with reference to the application to vary the licence at The Hilt, 
Goodramgate, York. I believe the ‘public safety’ licensing objective 
would be undermined if this application was granted. In my opinion 
consuming alcohol whilst throwing axes is a risk to the public. I believe 
that conditions 9, 11 and 14 in relation to the provision of alcohol etc 
should remain on the licence.  
 
Kind Regards 
 
Kerry  
 

Kerry Bell | Environmental Health Officer  
t: 07936366005 | e: kerry.bell@york.gov.uk 
 
City of York Council | Public Protection 
Hazel Court Eco Depot, James Street, York, YO10 3DS 
www.york.gov.uk | facebook.com/cityofyork |@CityofYork 

 

 
 

Privacy Notice 
City of York Council respects your privacy. For details of the information we collect, 
how we use it and who we may share it with, please visit 
https://www.york.gov.uk/privacy 
 
Coronavirus update 
There are a number of changes in the way the Public Protection are working during 
the current Coronavirus crisis. The vast majority of our officers are now working 
remotely away from the office. We ask that you assist in this process and 
communicate with us by email, and not by telephoning or posting items to the office 
address. If your enquiry is urgent please start the subject of your email with the word 
‘urgent’ and where possible tick the urgent marker in options. Thank you 

 
 

Page 57

mailto:kerry.bell@york.gov.uk
http://www.york.gov.uk/
http://www.facebook.com/cityofyork
http://twitter.com/cityofyork
https://www.york.gov.uk/privacy


This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey: 100020818

°
0 0.025 0.05 0.075 0.1 0.125

km

Author:

1:1,250Scale:

Annex 7

City of York Council

20 Apr 2022Date:

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



 

        ANNEX 8   
 

 
MANDATORY & PROHIBITED CONDITIONS – PREMISES LICENCE 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 
MANDATORY CONDITIONS WHERE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL   
 
1.  In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions. 
 
2.  The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence - 

(a)  at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 
(b)  at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence 
or his personal licence is suspended. 

 
3.   The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be 
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.  (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or 
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises – 

(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 
encourage individuals to – 

(i)   drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible 
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 
(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in 
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage 
or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any 
favourable manner; 
(e)  dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).  

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 
customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.  (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. 
     (2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that 
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

Page 61



     (3)  The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before 
being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either – 
 (a)  a holographic mark, or 
 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 
 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that – 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance 
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures – 

  (i)   beer or cider: ½ pint; 
 (ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and 
 (iii) still wine in a glass: 125ml; 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 
available to customers on the premises; and 
(c)  where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol 
to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 

 
MANDATORY CONDITION: ALCOHOL PRICING 
 
1.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off 
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
2.  For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 – 

(a)  “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(6); 
(b)  “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula – 

P = D + (D x V) 
where – 
(i)   P is the permitted price, 
(ii)  D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were  
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value 
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c)  “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence – 

(i)   the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such 
a licence; 

(d)  “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 
Tax Act 1994(7). 

 
3.  Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 
 
4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 

2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the 
second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 
(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second 
day. 

Page 62



MANDATORY CONDITION:  DOOR SUPERVISION 
 
1.  In accordance with section 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by section 25 Violent 
Crime Reduction Act 2006), where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified 
times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the licence 
must include a condition that each such individual must - 

(a)  be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001; or 
(b)  be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act. 

 
2.  But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed - 

(a)  in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films), or 
(b)  in respect of premises in relation to - 

(i)  any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises 
being used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary 
event notice authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence, or 
(ii)  any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed 
by regulations under that Act). 

 
3.  For the purposes of this section - 

(a)  "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, 
and which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act (see section 3(2) of that 
Act), and 

(b)  paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as 
it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule. 

 
MANDATORY CONDITION: EXHIBITION OF FILMS 
 
1.  In accordance with section 20 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence 
authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring the admission of 
children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section. 
 
2.  Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies, 
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that 
body. 
 
3.  Where - 

(a)  the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or 
(b)  the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this 
subsection applies to the film in question, admission of children must be restricted in 
accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing authority. 

 
4.  In this section - 'children' means persons aged under 18; and 'film classification body' means 
the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 
1984 (c.39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification). 
 
 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 9 

 

Legislation and Policy Considerations 

1. The following provisions of The Licensing Act 2003 apply to this application:  S4 
general duties of licensing authorities; s17 application for premises licence; s18 
determination of application for premises licence; s23 grant or rejection of 
application; ss19, 20 and 21 mandatory conditions; The Licensing Act 
(Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010; and The Licensing Act 2003 
(Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014.  

 
2. The following provisions of The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and 

Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 apply to this application:  
Regulation 42, Part 2 (Premises licences) and Part 4 (General) relating to 
applications, notices and representations and advertisement of applications 
 

3. The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s guidance apply to this 
application:  Section 2 The Licensing Objectives; Section 9 Determining 
applications; Section 10 Conditions attached to premises licences and club 
certificates; and Section 14 Statements of licensing policy.  
 

4. The following paragraphs of the licensing authority’s statement of licensing 
policy apply to this application:  5.0 Applications for Premises Licences, Club 
Premises Certificates and Variations; 6.0 Guidelines for Applicants; 7.0 
Saturation and Cumulative Impact and 8.0 Licensing Hours. 

 
5. The Committee is reminded of their duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 

1998 to consider the crime and disorder implications of their decisions and the 
authority’s responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in 
the city. 
 

6. The Committee is reminded that the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees the 
right to a fair hearing for all parties in the determination of their civil rights.  The 
Act also provides for the protection of property, which may include licences in 
existence, and the protection of private and family life. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amended 24/04/17 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 
	5 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 The Determination of an Application by Hilt Adventures Ltd. for a Section 35(3) (a) Variation of a Premises Licence for The Hilt, 57 Goodramgate, York YO1 7LS (CYC-066940)
	Annex 1 - Application
	Annex 2 - Current Licence
	Annex 3 - Cumulative Impact
	Annex 4 - Licensing policy annex
	Annex 5 - Police Representation
	Annex 6
	Annex 7 - Map
	Annex 8 - Mandatory conditions
	Annex 9 -  Legislation & Policy


